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2. Results of OperaƟons 

During the year under review, the Company achieved a gross 
income of ̀  87,113.95 lacs as against ̀  69,189.08 lacs for the 
corresponding period of the previous year thereby achieved 
a growth of around 25.90 %. 

The Company’s profit before depreciaƟon, interest, tax 
amounts to ` 7,003.36 lacs as compared to ` 4,483.99 lacs in 
the previous year, The Company has achieved Profit Before 
Tax of ` 4,688.13 lacs as against ` 2,971.54 lacs The Net 
Profit aŌer tax is  ` 3,137.72. lacs as against ` 2,034.64  lacs 
for the previous year.

The financial year 2013-14 was a significant year for the 
Company in terms of growth in profitability, The net profit 
during the year has grown around by 54% over the previous 
financial year.

3. Dividend

The Board of Directors at the meeƟng held on May 29, 2014 
recommended a dividend of  30% (` 3.00) per Equity Share 
(last year ̀  2.20  per Equity Share) on 50,50,600 equity shares 
of ` 10 each for the year ended March 31, 2014, subject to 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General 
MeeƟng. DistribuƟon Tax on the dividend is being borne by 
the Company.  

4. Transfer to Reserves

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956 read with Companies (Transfer to reserves) Rules, 1975, 
your directors propose to transfer a sum of ` 315.00 lacs to 
the general reserve out of profits earned by the Company. 

5. Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public 
in terms of SecƟon 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and rules 
made there under, during the year 2013-14 and as such, no 
amount on account of principal or interest on public deposits 
was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

6. Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement, a 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report is annexed as 
Annexure B forming part of this Report.

7. Corporate Governance

Your Company is commiƩed to maintain the good Corporate 
Governance pracƟces. Pursuant to Clause 49 of the LisƟng 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, a separate SecƟon 
on Corporate Governance together with a cerƟficate from 
the Company’s Auditor confirming compliance is set out 
in Annexure C and D forming part of this report. Further a 
declaraƟon on the Code of Conduct is given as Annexure E.

8. CEO and CFO CerƟficaƟon 

As required under clause 49(v) of the lisƟng agreement, 
the CEO/CFO cerƟficaƟon on the accounts of the Company 
as given by Sri Pradip Kumar Todi, Managing Director and 
Sri Ajay Patodia, Chief Financial Officer is set out in Annexure 
E forming part of this report.

9. Director's Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under secƟon 134 clause (C) 
of sub secƟon (3)  the Companies Act, 2013 the directors 
confirm : 

• In the preparaƟon of the annual accounts for the year 
ended  March 31, 2014, the applicable accounƟng 
standards have been followed along with proper 
explanaƟon relaƟng to material departure, if any;

• The Directors have selected such accounƟng policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and esƟmates that were reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at  March 31, 2014 and of the profit of the 
Company for the year ended on that date;

• The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for prevenƟng and detecƟng fraud and other 
irregulariƟes; an

• The Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the 
Company on a ‘going concern’ basis;

• The directors in case of a listed Company has laid 
down internal financial controls to be followed by the 
Company and that such internal financial controls are 
adequate and were operaƟng effecƟvely;

• That the directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operaƟng 
effecƟvely.

10. Directors

Mr. Nandanandan Mishra, Mr. Kamal Kishore Agarwal 
and Mr. Snehashish Ganguly are independent directors in 
the Company who reƟre by rotaƟon under the erstwhile 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act. In terms 
of SecƟon 149 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Ac, 2013 they being eligible offer themselves 
for reappointment and are proposed to be re-appointed 
as Independent directors for five consecuƟve years for a 
term up to 31st March 2019. The Company has received 
a noƟce from a member pursuant to secƟon 160 of the 
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Companies Act 2013 signifying intenƟon to propose them 
for the office of independent Director  under secƟon 149 of 
the Companies Act 2013. ResoluƟons seeking approval of 
the members have been incorporated in the noƟce of the 
forthcoming Annual General MeeƟng . Brief resume/details 
relaƟng to director’s who are to be appointed/re-appointed 
are furnished in the annexure to be the noƟce of the ensuing 
Annual General MeeƟng as required under the code of 
corporate Governance

11. Auditors and Auditor’s Report

M/s Sanjay Modi & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory 
Auditors of the Company, hold office unil the conclusion of 
the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng and are eligible for re-
appointment. The Members are requested to consider their 
appointment as the Statutory Auditors of the Company from 
the conclusion of this Annual General MeeƟng unƟl the 
conclusion of the TwenƟeth (20th) Annual General MeeƟng 
of the Company on such remuneraƟons as approved by the 
members.

The Company has received a cerƟficate from the proposed 
Auditors to the effect that their appointment, if made, 
would be in accordance with all the condiƟons prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

12. LisƟng with the Stock Exchanges

The Company’s equity shares are listed with The CalcuƩa 
Stock Exchange AssociaƟon Limited and Ahmedabad Stock 
Exchange Limited. The annual lisƟng fee to both the stock 
exchanges has been paid on Ɵme. 

13. Industrial RelaƟon

During the year under review, the industrial relaƟons 
remained cordial and stable. The directors wish to place 
on record their appreciaƟon for the excellent co-operaƟon 
received from all employees at all levels.

14. ParƟculars of Employees

The parƟculars of employees as required under secƟon 
217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the 
Companies (ParƟculars of Employees) Rules, 1975 are 

not applicable, as none of employees, either employed 
throughout the financial year or part of the financial year, 
was in receipt of remuneraƟon aggregate of such sum as 
prescribed under the rules amended up to date.

15. ConservaƟon of Energy, Technology AbsorpƟon and 
Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo

The parƟculars relaƟng to conservaƟon of energy, 
technology absorpƟon and foreign exchange earning and 
outgo required to be disclosed under secƟon 217(1) (e) of 
the Companies Act, 1956, read with Companies (Disclosure 
of ParƟculars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 
1988 are annexed here to and forms part of this report.

16. Credit RaƟng

Your Company’s raƟng  is CARE A  as its Long term bank 
faciliƟes and raƟng CARE A1 for the short term bank faciliƟes  
duly rated by Credit Analysis & research Limited.

17. Transfer of amounts to Investor EducaƟon and  ProtecƟon 
Fund

Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon  205C of the Companies 
Act,1956, unpaid applicaƟon amount, dividends which 
remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years have 
been transferred by the Company to the Investor EducaƟon 
and ProtecƟon Fund.

18. Acknowledgement

Your board wishes to place on record its sincere appreciaƟon 
for the conƟnued assistance and support extended to the 
Company by its customers, vendors, investors, business 
associates, banks, government authoriƟes and employees. 

The directors acknowledge with graƟtude the encouragement 
and support extended by the shareholders. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

  

Kolkata  Ashok Kumar Todi
May 29, 2014  Chairman
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INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 217 (1) (e) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF 
PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988 AND FORMING PART OF DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED MARCH, 31, 2014

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

 a. Energy ConservaƟon measures taken :

  The operaƟons of your company are not energy intensive, nonetheless, the energy opƟmizaƟon measures conƟnue 
to be pursued by the management during the year, viz, reducƟon of non-essenƟal loads to save the power.

 b. AddiƟonal investment and proposal, if any being implemented for reducƟon of consumpƟon of energy : No

 c. Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for reducƟon of energy consumpƟon and consequent impact on the 
cost of producƟon of goods : The impact of measures taken under (a) are under observaƟon.

 d. Total energy consumpƟon and energy consumpƟon per unit of producƟon as per Form A of the Annexure in respect 
of industries specified in the Schedule thereto as per Form A : Not Applicable

B. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

 a. Research & Development (R & D) :

  R & D are carried out separately by the Hosiery Research AssociaƟon.

 b. Technology absorpƟon, adaptaƟon and innovaƟon :

  No import of technology was made. Company uses indigenous technology only. 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

 a. AcƟviƟes relaƟng to exports, iniƟaƟves taken to increase exports, development of new export market for products 
and exports plans : During the year Company has exported hosiery goods to Middle East Countries. The Company is 
exploring further possibility to export goods to Africa, Europe and USA.

 b. InformaƟon in respect of Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo is : 

Sl. No. ParƟculars Current Year (` Lacs) Previous Year (` Lacs.)

i) Earning 11213.79 8019.11

ii) Outgo 208.02 179.78

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

  

Kolkata  Ashok Kumar Todi
May 29, 2014  Chairman

Annexure A
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ANNEXURE B

Management  
Discussion & Analysis

IntroducƟon
The year under review has seen robust growth in producƟon 
and sales of your Company’s products.

Financial Review
The Companies turnover rose around 22% YoY basis.  With a 
54% jump in PAT as compared to previous year.

Overview
The global economy began its modest recovery in FY 
2013-14 with improved demand from OECD economies 
in the second half of 2013. While the trend is expected 
to accelerate in the current year, the posiƟve outlook is 
subdued by the potenƟal consequences of ‘tapering’ of 
some of the US Federal Reserve’s QuanƟtaƟve Easing (QE) 
policies which were undertaken in the aŌermath of global 
financial crises. Emerging markets like India faced mulƟple 
challenges: capital ouƞlows, intense exchange rate pressures 
and volaƟle current account movement. A combinaƟon 
of persistent inflaƟon, fiscal imbalances, external sector 
vulnerabiliƟes and low investments resulted in sluggish 
domesƟc demand growth. Fiscal and monetary iniƟaƟves 
taken by the Indian Government and the Reserve Bank of 
India (RBI) helped stabilise financial market condiƟons, but 
the domesƟc macro-economic environment sƟll remains 
challenging. India’s current texƟle and apparel market size 
is US$90 billion. Meanwhile in a recent report released by 
FederaƟon of Indian Chamber of Commerce and Industry 
(FICCI), India's texƟle exports are expected to rise from 
$21 bn annually in 2012 to $145.6 bn in 2023. As per the 
12th Five Year Plan working group on texƟles and apparel, 
the texƟles sector will create an addiƟonal employment of 
15 mn by 2016-17, which means the sector can provide 30 
mn addiƟonal jobs by 2023. Given that texƟles and clothing 
sector is labour intensive, FICCI projects that it can provide 
employment to atleast an addiƟonal 20 mn people from the 
current 45 mn to 65 mn by 2023.

TexƟles exports stood at US$ 28.53 billion during April 
2013 - January 2014 as compared to US$ 24.90 billion during 
the corresponding period of the previous year, registering 
a growth of 14.58 per cent. Garment exports from India is 
expected to touch US$ 60 billion over the next three years, 
with the help of government support.

Financial Performance

Sales :
The Revenue from OperaƟons of your Company for the year 
ended 31st March, 2014 was at ` 87,063.37 Lacs (Previous 
Year ` 71,325.74 Lacs).

Expenditure :
Your Company conƟnued its focus on cost management 
iniƟaƟves.

Profit : 
Profit aŌer Tax for the year under review amounted to 
` 31,37.72 Lacs  (Previous Year 2,034.64 Lacs).

Dividend: 
This year the company has declared a higher dividend of 
` 3.00 Per share as compared to previous years ` 2.20 per 
share.

OpportuniƟes and threats :
The demand for the companies product are on the rise , the 
premium products are more visible and are adding to the 
revenue of the Company. AssociaƟon with Indian Premier 
League has given a wider reach to the companies products. 
Lux Cozi has become house hold name in India and the 
Company is gaining reputaƟon in the internaƟonal circuit as 
well. Companies associaƟon with TOIFA and ZEE Cine awards 
has also been fruiƞul for the company.

Future Outlook
The Company has done well in the domesƟc market and the 
premium segment ONN is also gaining momentum both in 
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the naƟonal and internaƟonal markets, the target for the 
Company in forth coming years is to clock turnover of ̀  1,200 
crores  with an export target of ` 150 crores. The Company is 
seƫng up a manufacturing unit at Dankuni West Bengal and 
expect the unit to start producƟon in the Coming Year.

Risks and Concern
Proper and unhindered availability of labor force is an issue 
to meet the increasing demand coupled with un even price 
fluctuaƟon in yarn prices and govt policies are some of 
the issues that needs to be taken care of, your company is 
seƫng up its own manufacturing units so as to cut down 
on dependence to outside forces, Your Company has a well 
documented Risk Management Policy. This policy is reviewed 
by the Management periodically and is appropriately 
modified wherever necessary.

Transparency in Sharing InformaƟon
Transparency refers to sharing informaƟon and acƟng in 
an open manner. Processes, instrucƟons and informaƟon 
are directly accessible to those concerned with them and 
enough informaƟon is provided to understand and monitor 
them. Your Company believes in total transparency in 
sharing informaƟon about its business operaƟons with all 
its stakeholders. Your Company strives to provide maximum 
possible informaƟon in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis in the Annual Report and also through other means 
to keep the stakeholders informed about the business 
performance.

Internal Control Systems
The Company has adequate internal control procedure 
commensurate with the nature of its business and the size 
of its operaƟons for the smooth conduct of its businesses.

Internal audit is conducted at regular intervals and covers 
the key areas of operaƟons. It is an independent, objecƟve 
and assurance funcƟon responsible for evaluaƟng and 
improving the effecƟveness of risk management, control 
and governance processes. An Audit CommiƩee consisƟng 
of three independent non-execuƟve directors, inter alia, 
monitors performance of Internal Audit on a periodical 
basis through review of the audit plans, audit findings and 
promptness of issue resoluƟon through follow-ups.

Human Resources
Your Company's industrial relaƟons conƟnued to be 
harmonious during the year under review. Your Company 
conducts regular in-house training programs for employees 
at all levels. The Company has inbuilt systems to ensure 
that employees are conƟnuously updated with the needs 
of changing technology. The employee strength of your 
Company currently is 645.

CauƟonary statement
EsƟmates and expectaƟons stated in this Management 
Discussion and Analysis may be a "forward-looking 
statement" within the meaning of applicable securiƟes laws 
and regulaƟons. Actual results could differ materially from 
those expected or implied. Important factors that could make 
a difference to your Company's operaƟons include economic 
condiƟons affecƟng demand/supply, price condiƟons in 
the domesƟc and internaƟonal markets, changes in the 
Government regulaƟons, tax laws, other statutes and other 
incidental factors.
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1. Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance

Your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance conƟnues to be the aƩainment of highest levels of accountability and 
equity in all its acƟons and enhancement of value of all its stakeholders. Your Company is totally commiƩed to good Corporate 
Governance by adopƟng best corporate pracƟces to achieve excellence in its dealings. Apart from accepƟng the role of a 
responsible Corporate RepresentaƟve, your Company recognizes the fact that good Corporate Governance is an essenƟal pre-
requisite for sustained wealth.

2. Board of Directors

a. ComposiƟon of the Board

As on March 31, 2014, The Company’s Board of Directors consisted of six members. The Chairman of the Board is an ExecuƟve 
Promoter Director. In addiƟon, the Board comprises of five other Directors, two of them being an ExecuƟve Directors and 
remaining three are Non – ExecuƟve Independent Directors. None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than ten 
CommiƩees or Chairman of more than five CommiƩees across all companies in which they are Directors. 

The Board meets regularly to review the strategic, operaƟonal and financial maƩers of the Company. The Board has also 
delegated its powers to the CommiƩees. The Agenda of the meeƟng is circulated to all the Directors in advance and all 
material informaƟon is provided to facilitate meaningful and focused discussion at the meeƟng. The Board reviews the 
compliance of the applicable laws in the Board meeƟng. The Budgets for the Financial Year is discussed with the Board at the 
commencement of the financial year and the comparison of the quarterly/annual performance of the Company vis-a -vis the 
budgets is presented to the Board before taking on record the quarterly/annual financial results of the Company. The Board is 
also given presentaƟon covering the financial and other aspects of the Company before taking on record the quarterly/annual 
financial results of the Company. The requisite informaƟon as required is provided to the Board.

The composiƟon of the Board of Directors, the number of other Directorship and CommiƩee posiƟon held by the Director as 
a Member/ Chairman as on March 31, 2014 are as under:

Name of  the Director Category of Directorship No. of other 
Directorships

No. of CommiƩee 
Memberships*

Chairman Member

Sri Ashok Kumar Todi Promoter
Whole-Ɵme-Director
ExecuƟve Chairman

14 –

Sri Pradip Kumar Todi Promoter
Managing Director ExecuƟve

16 –

Sri Navin Kumar Todi Non-Independent ExecuƟve 1 –

Sri Nandanandan Mishra Independent Non-ExecuƟve 5 6

Sri Snehasish Ganguly Independent Non-ExecuƟve 8 –

Sri Kamal Kishore Agrawal Independent Non-ExecuƟve 1 –

* In accordance with Clause 49, Memberships/Chairmanships of only the Audit CommiƩees and Shareholders’/Investors’ 
Grievance CommiƩees of all Public Limited Companies  (excluding  Lux Industries Limited) have been considered.

ANNEXURE C

Report on  
Corporate Governance
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b. Board Procedure

The Board of Directors meets from Ɵme to Ɵme to transact the business in respect of which the Boards aƩenƟon is considered 
necessary. There is a well-laid procedure to send detailed agenda papers to the Directors before such MeeƟngs. The Directors 
express their views freely and seek clarificaƟons on various items of business taken up in such meeƟngs. The discussions are 
held in a transparent manner. Various decisions emanaƟng from such meeƟngs are implemented to streamline the systems 
and procedures followed by the Company. 

The informaƟon as specified in Annexure 1A to Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement is regularly made available to the Board.

(c) AƩendance of each Director at the Board MeeƟngs and the Last Annual General MeeƟng

Name of  the Director No. of Board MeeƟng aƩended AƩendance at last AGM held on September 27, 2013

Sri Ashok Kumar Todi 3 Yes

Sri Pradip Kumar Todi 4 Yes

Sri Navin Kumar Todi 4 Yes

Sri Nandanandan Mishra 4 Yes

Sri Snehasish Ganguly 2 Yes

Sri Kamal Kishore Agrawal 4 Yes

d. Details of Board MeeƟng held during the Year

Date of Board MeeƟng 28.05.13 10.08.13 13.11.13 11.02.14 31.03.14

Board Strength 6 6 6 6 6

No. of Directors Present 4 5 6 3 3

The maximum interval between any two meeƟngs was not more than four months. 

e. RelaƟonship inter-se

Except Sri Ashok Kumar Todi, Sri Pradip Kumar Todi and Navin Kumar Todi, none of the directors of the Company is related to 
any other director of the Company.

f. Details of Shareholding of directors as on March 31, 2014

SL No. Name No. of share held

1 Sri Ashok Kumar Todi 656000

2 Sri Pradip Kumar Todi 806500

Note: Other directors does not hold shares in the Company.

3. Audit CommiƩee

a. ComposiƟon of Audit CommiƩee

Your Company has an Audit CommiƩee at the Board Level, with the powers and role that are in accordance with Clause 49 of 
the LisƟng Agreement and SecƟon 292A of the Companies Act, 1956. The composiƟon of the Audit CommiƩee as on March 
31, 2014 is as follows:

Name of the CommiƩee Member Category

Sri Nandanandan Mishra – Chairman Independent, Non-ExecuƟve

Sri Snehashish Ganguly – Member Independent, Non-ExecuƟve

Sri Kamal Kishore Agrawal – Member Independent, Non-ExecuƟve
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All these members possess knowledge of corporate finance, accounts and company law. The execuƟve responsible for the 
finance and accounts funcƟons and the representaƟve of Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors are regularly invited by the 
Audit CommiƩee to its meeƟngs. Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary of the Audit CommiƩee.

b. AƩendance of each Member at the Audit CommiƩee held during the year

During the year, four meeƟngs of the Audit CommiƩee were held and aƩendance was as under:

Name of the CommiƩee Member No. of MeeƟngs

Held AƩended

Sri Nandanandan Mishra 4 4

Sri Snehashish Ganguly 4 2

Sri Kamal Kishore Agrawal 4 4

c. Powers of Audit CommiƩee

 1. To invesƟgate any acƟvity within its terms of reference.

 2. To seek any informaƟon from any employee.

 3. To obtain legal or other independent professional advice. 

 4. To secure aƩendance of outsiders with relevant experƟse, if it considers necessary.

d. FuncƟon of Audit CommiƩee

 The key funcƟons of the Audit CommiƩee include the following:

 • Oversight of the Company’s financial reporƟng process and the disclosure of its financial informaƟon, to ensure that 
the financial statements are true and accurate and provide sufficient informaƟon. 

 • Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the 
statutory auditor and the fixaƟon of their audit fees. 

 • Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

 • Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval, with 
parƟcular reference to:

  - MaƩers required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement, which forms part of the Board’s report 
in terms of clause (2AA) of secƟon 217 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

  - Changes, if any, in accounƟng policies and pracƟces and reasons for the same. 

  - Major accounƟng entries involving esƟmates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

  - Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

  - Compliance with lisƟng and other legal requirements relaƟng to financial statements. 

  - Disclosure of any related party transacƟons. 

  - QualificaƟons in the draŌ audit report.

 • Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval. 

 • Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems. 

 • Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit funcƟon including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department. 

 • Discussion with internal auditors with respect to the coverage and frequency of internal audits as per the annual audit 
plan, nature of significant findings and follow up thereof.

 •  Reviewing the findings of any internal invesƟgaƟons by the internal auditors into maƩers where there is suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporƟng the maƩer to the Board. 
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 • Obtaining an update on the Risks Management Framework and the manner in which risks are being addressed. 

 • Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

 •  Review the reasons for substanƟal defaults in the payment to the depositors, shareholders (in case of non payment 
of declared dividends) and creditors, if any.

 •  To review the funcƟoning of the Whistle Blower mechanism and the nature of complaints received by the Ombudsman. 

 • Carrying out any other funcƟon as is menƟoned in the terms of reference of the Audit CommiƩee.

 • Approval or any subsequent modificaƟon of transacƟons of the company with related parƟes;

 • ScruƟny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

 • ValuaƟon of undertakings or assets of the company, whenever it is necessary:

 • EvaluaƟon of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

 • Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related maƩers.

 •  Audit CommiƩee can

  (i) call for comments of auditors about internal control systems, scope of audit and their observaƟons

  (ii)  review the financial statements before submission to board and may discuss related issue with internal/statutory 
Auditors and Management.

  (iii)  Full access to informaƟon contained in the records of company. 

4. NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee
In terms of recently noƟfied secƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder, the Board of Directors 
of the Company at its meeƟng held on May 29, 2014 have consƟtuted NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee. The Board 
of Director’s of the company has appointed Sri Kamal Kishore Agarwal as a member of this commiƩee in its meeƟng held on 
May 29, 2014   

Details of the composiƟon of the CommiƩee is as under:

Name of the CommiƩee Member Category

Sri Nandanandan Mishra – Chairman Independent, Non-ExecuƟve

Sri Snehasish Ganguly – Member Independent, Non-ExecuƟve

Sri Kamal Kishore Agarwal – Member Independent, Non-ExecuƟve

Sri Ashok Kumar Todi – Member Promoter ExecuƟve

The CommiƩee met once on 11.02.2014 and all the members had aƩended the meeƟng. The terms of reference of the 
NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee are as per secƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed 
thereunder, clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement or any other laws/rules, as applicable or amended from Ɵme to Ɵme.

RemuneraƟon Policy 

A. RemuneraƟon to Non-ExecuƟve Directors 

The Non-ExecuƟve Directors are paid remuneraƟon by way of siƫng fees only. None of the Non-ExecuƟve Directors has any 
material pecuniary relaƟonship or transacƟons with the Company. 

B. RemuneraƟon to  Directors 

The appointment of Chairman (WholeƟme Director) and Managing Director is governed by resoluƟons passed by the Board 
of Directors and shareholders of the Company, which covers the terms of such appointment and remuneraƟon. Payment of 
remuneraƟon to Chairman and Managing Director is governed by the respecƟve Agreements executed between them and the 
Company. RemuneraƟon paid to Chairman and Managing Director and is recommended by the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee, approved by the Board and is within the limits set by the shareholders at the Annual General MeeƟngs. 
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Presently, the Company does not have a scheme for grant of stock opƟons or performance linked incenƟves for its Directors.

Details of RemuneraƟon to all the Directors for the year ended March 31, 2014.

Name of Directors RemuneraƟon (Salary) Siƫng Fees Total

 Board MeeƟngs Audit CommiƩee

Sri Ashok Kumar Todi 30,00,000.00 – – 30,00,000.00
Sri Pradip Kumar Todi 30,00,000.00 – – 30,00,000.00
Sri Nandanandan Mishra – 20,000.00 20,000.00     40,000.00
Sri Snehasish Ganguly –  10,000.00 10,000.00       20,000.00
Sri Navin Kumar Todi – – – –
Sri Kamal Kishore Agrawal – 20,000.00 20,000.00      40,000.00

5. Stakeholder RelaƟonship CommiƩee (Previously known as Shareholders Grievance CommiƩee)

Your Company has a Stakeholder RelaƟonship CommiƩee at the Board Level to look into various issues relaƟng to shareholders 
including transfer and transmission of shares, non-receipt of dividend, Annual Report, shares aŌer transfer and delay in 
transfer of shares. In addiƟon, the CommiƩee looks into other issues including status of dematerialisaƟon / re- materialisaƟon 
of shares as well as system and procedures followed to track investor complaints and suggest measures for improvement from 
Ɵme to Ɵme. To expedite the transfer in the physical segment, necessary authority has been delegated by your Board to a 
CommiƩee called as Share Transfer CommiƩee.  

Details of the composiƟon of the CommiƩee as on March 31, 2014 is as follows:

Name of the CommiƩee Member Category
Sri Nandanandan Mishra – Chairman Independent, Non-ExecuƟve
Sri Snehasish Ganguly – Member Independent, Non-ExecuƟve
Sri Ashok Kumar Todi – Member Promoter ExecuƟve

The CommiƩee met once on February 11, 2014 and all members  had aƩended the meeƟng. 

During the year the Company has received 19 complaints which were aƩended to. No investors’ complaint is pending as on 
March 31, 2014.

Sri Navin Kumar Agarwal, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for complying with the requirements of SEBI RegulaƟons 
and the LisƟng Agreements with the Stock Exchanges. 

6.  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) CommiƩee

Your Company is focused to address the objecƟves and requirements set for CSR both in leƩer and spirit of the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and intends to be a significant and durable contributor to CSR iniƟaƟves in India by devising and 
implemenƟng social improvement projects, wherein it could employ technological innovaƟon(s) in favour of disadvantaged 
communiƟes, towns and villages.

In terms of recently noƟfies secƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014 the Company has consƟtuted Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee on May 29, 2014.

The composiƟon of the commiƩee is as under:

Name of the CommiƩee Member Category
Sri Ashok Kumar Todi – Chairman Promoter ExecuƟve
Sri Pradip Kumar Todi – Member Promoter ExecuƟve
Sri Kamal Kishore Agarwal – Member Independent, Non-ExecuƟve

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee are as per secƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 or any other laws/rules, as applicable or amended from 
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Ɵme to Ɵme. It’s mandate include recommending to the Board of Director’s a CSR Policy, expenditure to be incurred on CSR  
and monitor CSR acƟviƟes.

7.  Management

 (a) Management Discussion and Analysis

  This Annual Report has a detailed chapter on Management Discussion and Analysis as annexure to the Directors’ 
Report for the year 2013-14.

 (b) Disclosures by management to the Board

  All details relaƟng to financial and commercial transacƟons where Directors may have a potenƟal interest are provided 
to the Board, and the interested Directors neither in the discussion, nor do they vote on such maƩers.

8.  Disclosure regarding appointment or reappointment of Directors

 A brief resume, nature of experƟse in specific funcƟonal areas, number of equity shares held in the Company by the 
Directors or other person on beneficial basis, names of companies in which the person already holds directorship and 
membership of commiƩees of the Board forms part of the NoƟce convening the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng. 

9.  Compliance cerƟficate of the Auditors 

 The Statutory Auditors have cerƟfied that the Company has complied with the condiƟons of Corporate Governance as 
sƟpulated in Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges and the same is annexed separately to this 
Report.

10.  Code of Conduct:

 The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. 
A CerƟficate from the Managing Director and CFO affirming compliance of the said code by all the Board Members and 
Members of the Senior Management of the Company, to whom the Code is applicable, is annexed separately to this 
Report.

11.  CEO / CFO CerƟficaƟon:

 The CEO / CFO cerƟficaƟon on the financial statements and internal control is separately annexed.

12.   General Body MeeƟng

 a) LocaƟon and Ɵme, where last three Annual General MeeƟngs were held are given below:

AGM Date and Time Venue Special ResoluƟon

16th September 30, 2011
11.30 a.m

DSPC Auditorium Plot no. X-1,2&3, Block- EP Sector – V, 
Saltlake City, Kolkata - 700091.

Nil

17th September 28, 2012
11.30 a.m

DSPC Auditorium Plot no. X-1,2&3, Block- EP Sector – V, 
Saltlake City, Kolkata - 700091.

Nil

18th September 27, 2013
10.30 a.m

DSPC Auditorium Plot no. X-1,2&3, Block- EP Sector – V, 
Saltlake City, Kolkata - 700091.

Nil

 b) Passing of ResoluƟons by Postal Ballot:

  No resoluƟons were passed by postal ballot in the year under review. At the forthcoming AGM also, there is no items 
on the Agenda that needs approval by Postal Ballot.       

 c)  Extra-ordinary General MeeƟng: 

  No Extra-ordinary general meeƟng was held by the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2014.

13.  Disclosures

 a) Disclosure on materially significant related party transacƟons that may have potenƟal conflict with the interests of 
the Company at large.

  None of the transacƟons with any of related parƟes were in conflict with the Company’s interest. AƩenƟon of members 



Annual Report|39

is drawn to the disclosure of transacƟons with related parƟes set out in Note No. 31 of Financial Statements, forming 
part of the Annual Report.

  The Company’s major related party transacƟons are generally with its group companies  and associates. The related 
party transacƟons are entered into based on consideraƟons of various business exigencies, such as synergy in 
operaƟons, sectoral specialisaƟon and the Company’s long-term strategy for sectoral investments, opƟmisaƟon of 
market share, profitability, legal requirements, liquidity and capital resources of group company and associates. 

  All related party transacƟons are negoƟated on arms length basis, and are intended to further the Company’s interests

 b) Disclosure of AccounƟng Treatment 

  In the preparaƟon of the financial statements, the Company has followed the AccounƟng Standards referred to in 
SecƟon 211 (3)(c) of the Companies Act, 1956. The significant accounƟng policies which are consistently applied are 
set out in the Annexure to Notes to the Accounts.

 c) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalƟes, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or 
SEBI or any statutory authority, on any maƩer related to capital markets, during the last three years.

  There has been no instance of non-compliance by the Company on any maƩer related to capital markets during the 
last three years and hence no penalƟes or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or 
SEBI or any other statutory authority.

 d) Risk Management

  The Company has periodic review and reporƟng to the Board of Directors of risk assessment by senior execuƟves with 
a view to minimize risk.

 e) Proceeds from public issue, right issue, preferenƟal issues etc.

  During the year, your company did not raise any funds by way of public, right, preferenƟal issue etc.

 f) Disclosure of Non Mandatory Requirement

  Chairman’s Office

  The Company has an ExecuƟve Chairman and the office with required faciliƟes is provided and maintained at the 
Company’s expenses for use by the Chairman

  NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

  The Company has consƟtuted a NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and the full details of the same are 
available elsewhere in the report.

  Shareholders Rights

  The financial are normally published in  Business Standard (English) and Kalantar  (Bengali) newspapers and therefore, 
have not been separately circulated to the shareholders.

  Audit QualificaƟon

  The company has moved towards a regime of  unqualified financial statement.

  Whistle Blower Mechanism

  The Company has formulated a necessary Whistle Blower Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) which shall be formally 
adopted in due course in line with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the terms of lisƟng agreements with 
the Stock Exchanges.

14. Means of CommunicaƟon

 a) The quarterly, half yearly and yearly results are submiƩed to the Stock Exchanges on which the shares of the 
Company are listed immediately aŌer the Board approves the same. Half yearly results are not separately sent to the 
shareholders.

 b) The results are normally published in Business Standard (English) and Arthik Lipi (Bengali) newspapers.

 c) Company’s Website: The Company has launched its new website ,the address is www.luxinnerwear.com

 d) No formal presentaƟons were made to the insƟtuƟonal investors and analysts during the year under review.
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 e) The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report, which is posted to the shareholders 
of the Company.

15.  General Shareholder InformaƟon:

Annual General MeeƟng:

Date and Time Friday, September 26, 2014 at 11.00 am

Venue DPSC Auditorium, Plot no X – 1, 2 & 3, Block – EP Sector – V, Saltlake City, Kolkata - 700 091

Book closure dates September 08, 2014 to September 26, 2014 (both days inclusive)

Proposed dividend ` 3.00 (30%) per equity share of ` 10/- each

Dividend payment date On or aŌer September 26, 2014 (within the statutory Ɵme limit of 30 days), subject to 
shareholders’ approval

Financial Year 1st April to 31st March

Financial calendar   

First Quarterly Results 2nd  week of Aug, 2014

Second Quarterly Results 2nd  week of November, 2014

Third Quarterly Results 2nd  week of February, 2015

Fourth Quarterly Results 2nd week of May, 2015

Annual General MeeƟng September, 2015

LisƟng on Stock Exchange & Stock Code:

Exchange Code

The CalcuƩa Stock Exchange AssociaƟon Limited (CSE) CSE22124/0022124

Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited (ASE) 32985/ LUX “HOSIN”

Annual LisƟng fees for the year 2014-15 have been duly paid to the above Stock Exchanges. 

DematerialisaƟon of Shares

The Company has arrangements with both NSDL and CDSL to establish electronic connecƟvity for scrip less trading and as on 
March 31, 2014, 79.96% of the paid up share capital is held in dematerialised form. The Annual Custodial Charges to NSDL and 
CDSL has also been paid. The ISIN Number alloƩed to Company’s Shares is INE150G01012.

Shares held in demat and physical mode as at  March 31, 2014

Category Number of % to total equity

Shareholders Shares

A. Demat mode

No. of Shares held by NSDL 847 1762297 35.93

No. of Shares held by CDSL 355 2277958 44.03

Total 1202 4040255 79.96

Physical mode 118 1010345 20.04

Grand total 1320 5050600 100.00

Unclaimed Dividend

SecƟon 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, mandates that companies transfer dividend that has been Unpaid / Unclaimed for 
a period of seven years from the unpaid account to the Investor’s EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund (IEPF).  In accordance with 
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the following schedule, the dividend for the years menƟoned below, if unclaimed within a period of seven years, will be 
transferred to IEPF.

Year Dividend Type Dividend per share (`) Date  of declaraƟon Due date for 
transfer

2006-2007 final 2.00 September 25, 2007 November 02, 2014

2007-2008 final 2.20 September 27, 2008 November 04, 2015

2008-2009 final 1.80 September 30, 2009 November 07, 2016

2009-2010 final 2.00 September 22, 2010 October 29, 2017

2010-2011 final 2.20 September 30, 2011 November 07, 2018

2011-2012 final 2.20 September 28, 2012 November 05, 2019

2012-2013 final 2.20 September 27, 2013 November 04, 2020

2013-2014 final 3.00 September 26, 2013 November 03, 2021

The Company is sending periodic communicaƟon to the concerned shareholders, advising them to lodge their claims with 
respect to unclaimed dividend. Shareholders are cauƟoned that once unclaimed dividend is transferred to IEPF, no claim shall 
lie in respect thereof with the Company.

Stock Price data:

There was no transacƟon of the Equity Shares of the Company at the CalcuƩa Stock Exchange and Ahmedabad Stock Exchange 
during the year ended March 31, 2014.

Registrar and share Transfer Agents:   Local address

Karvy Computershare Private Limited      Karvy Computershare Private Limited
“Karvy House” 48, Avenue 4,                   49, JaƟn Das Road
Street No. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad – 500 034 Kolkata-700029.

Share Capital ReconciliaƟon Report

As sƟpulated by the SEBI, a qualified PracƟcing Company Secretary carried out a Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total 
admiƩed capital with NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 
and the total issued and listed capital. The audit is carried out every quarter and the Report thereon is submiƩed to the Stock 
Exchanges and is also placed before the Board of Directors. The Report confirms that the total issued/paid up capital is in 
agreement with the total number of shares in physical forms and the total number of dematerializaƟon shares held with NSDL 
and CDSL.

E-voƟng:

SEBI has amended clause 35B of lisƟng agreement,  As per SEBI noƟficaƟon, with effect from 17th April, 2013, The companies 
are required to provide e-voƟng facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resoluƟons, to be passed at 
General MeeƟng. Such e-voƟng facility shall be kept open for such period specified under the Companies (Management and 
AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014 for shareholders to send their assent or dissent. 

(ii)  Those shareholders who do not have access to e-voƟng can vote physically at the venue. 

(iii)  The company  shall uƟlize the service of Karvy Computershare Private Limited for providing e-voƟng plaƞorm, which is in 
compliance with condiƟons specified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, from Ɵme to Ɵme. 

(iv)  The company  shall menƟon the Internet link of such e-voƟng plaƞorm in the noƟce to their shareholders.  

Share Transfer System:

Shares lodged in physical form with Company/its Registrar and Shares Transfer Agent are processed and returned duly 
transferred, within 15-20 days normally, except in cases where dispute involved. 
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In  case  of  shares  held  in  Demat mode, the transfer takes place  instantaneously between the transferor,  transferee  and  
the  Depository ParƟcipant though electronic debit/ credit of accounts involved. 

The company has share transfer commiƩee which look aŌer the share transfer process

DistribuƟon of Shareholding as on March 31, 2014

Range of Shares held No. of Shareholders % No. of Shares %

       1 –  5000 1072 81.21 148577 2.94

  5001 - 10000 162 12.27 133308 2.64

 10001- 20000 38 2.88 58328 1.15

20001 – 30000 11 0.83 29900 0.59

30001 – 40000 5 0.38 19000 0.38

40001 – 50000 6 0.45 26850 0.53

50001 –100000 5 0.38 34655 0.69

100001and above 21 1.59 4599982 91.08

Total 1320 100.00 5050600 100.00

Shareholding paƩern as at March 31, 2014

Category Number of % to total equity

Shareholders Shares

A.  Promoters

        -  Indian  Promoters 5 3723000 73.71

B.  Non- Promoters

      -  Corporate Bodies 18 565751 11.20

     -  Indian Public 1297 761849 15.08

Total 1320 5050600 100.00

LocaƟon of Plant:

1. S. F. 473/1B1, Avinashi Lingam Palayam,     3.  Sankrail Industrial Park,
 Palangarai Village, Avinashi (T.N.)                     Jalan Complex, Kendwa,
 Coimbatore - 641 654                                          Howrah (W.B.)

2. B-XXXII-1429/11 Jujhar Singh Nagar
 Gehlewal Pind, Rahon Road Ludhiana 

Address for Correspondence:

1. Karvy Computershare Private Limited, 

 “Karvy House”, 46, Avenue 4, Street No. 1, 
 Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500 034
 E-Mail: mailmanager@karvy.com

2. Secretarial Department
 Lux Industries Limited,
 39, Kali Krishna Tagore Street, 
 Kolkata - 700 007
 E-mail : investors@luxinnerwear.com
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Auditors’ Certificate on  

Corporate Governance 

To, 
The Members of
Lux  Industries Limited 

a. We have examined the compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance by Lux Industries Limited, for the year ended on 
March 31, 2014, as sƟpulated in clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement of the said Company with the Stock Exchange.

b. The Compliance of condiƟons of the Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examinaƟon was 
limited to procedures and implementaƟon thereof, adopted by the Company to ensure compliance with the condiƟons 
of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

c. In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, we cerƟfy that the Company 
has complied with the condiƟons of Corporate Governance as sƟpulated in the LisƟng Agreement.

d. We state that no investor’s grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the 
records maintained by the Company.

e. We further state that such compliance is neither as assurance as to future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 For Sanjay Modi & Company 
 Chartered Accountants

Prodyat Chaudhury
Kolkata Partner
May 29, 2014 Membership No. 065401

ANNEXURE D
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Certification by Managing Director and 

Chief Financial Officer of the Company 

We, Pradip Kumar Todi, Managing Director and Ajay Kumar Patodia, CFO of Lux Industries Limited, to the best of our knowledge 
and belief cerƟfy that:

1. We have reviewed the Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31st March, 2014 and Profit and Loss Account for the year 
ending on such date together with all its schedule and notes on Accounts, as well as the Cash Flow Statement.

2. To the best of our knowledge and informaƟon:

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit to state a material fact or contains statements 
that might be misleading.

b.  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affair and are in compliance with exisƟng 
accounƟng standards, applicable laws and regulaƟons.

3. We also cerƟfy that based on our knowledge and informaƟon provided to us, there are no transacƟons entered into by 
the Company, which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company’s code of conduct.

4. We and the Company’s other CerƟfying Officers are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and 
procedures for the Company, and we have evaluated the effecƟveness of the Company’s internal controls and procedure.

5. We and the Company’s other CerƟfying Officers have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluaƟon, whichever 
applicable, to the Company’s auditors and through them to the Audit CommiƩee of the company, the following:

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operaƟon of internal controls , which we are aware of and have taken steps to 
recƟfy these deficiencies;

b. significant changes in internal control during the year;

c. any fraud, which we have become aware of and that involves the management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the Company’s internal control systems;  

d. significant changes in accounƟng policies during the year.

We further declare that all members of the Board and CommiƩees and all employees working at the level of ExecuƟve and 
above have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of the company for the current year.

  
Kolkata Pradip Kumar Todi Ajay Kumar Patodia
May 29, 2014 Managing Director CFO

ANNEXURE E
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Lux Industries Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
LUX Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended 
and a summary of significant accounƟng policies and other 
explanatory informaƟon.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management is responsible for the 
preparaƟon of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial posiƟon, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
AccounƟng Standards noƟfied under the  Companies 
Act,1956 (“the Act”) read with General Circular 15/2013 
dated 13th September 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs in respect of SecƟon 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and in accordance with the accounƟng principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the 
design, implementaƟon and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng issued by the 
InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the Company’s preparaƟon and fair presentaƟon of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are an appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecƟveness of the 
company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluaƟng 
the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounƟng esƟmates made by the 
management, as well as evaluaƟng the overall presentaƟon 
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and 
according to the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the informaƟon required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounƟng principles generally 
accepted in India:

a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31,2014;

b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the 
profit of the company for the year ended on that date; 
and

c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.              

Other MaƩer

We draw aƩenƟon to Note 34 to the Financial statements 
relaƟng to Search and Seizure operaƟons conducted by the 
Income Tax Department on the Company’s various locaƟons 
for which no order consequent to such operaƟons has so far 
been received by the company. Our opinion is not qualified 
in respect of this maƩer.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of SecƟon 227(4A) of the Act, we give 
in the Annexure a statement on the maƩers specified in 
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by SecƟon 227(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

 a) we have obtained all the informaƟon and 
explanaƟons which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our 
audit;

 b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as 
appears from our examinaƟon of those books.

 c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss’ and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 
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For Sanjay Modi & Co.
FRN: 322295E

Chartered Accountants

CA Prodyat Chaudhuri
Kolkata  Partner
Date: May 29, 2014  Membership No.: 065401

Independent Auditors’ Report

 d) in our opinion, the balance sheet, statement of 
profit & Loss and cash flow statement comply 
with the AccounƟng Standards noƟfied under the 
Act read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 
13 September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs in respect of secƟon 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

 e) On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons 
received from the directors as on March 31, 2014, 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2014, 
from being appointed as a director in terms of 
SecƟon 274(1)(g) of the Act.
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING 
OF “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS“ OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE.

1) a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full parƟculars, including quanƟtaƟve 
details and situaƟon of fixed assets on the basis of 
available informaƟon.

 b) According to informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us all the Fixed Assets have been physically 
verified by the management during the year. In 
our opinion the frequency of such verificaƟon 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
company and nature of the assets. As informed 
to us, no material discrepancies were noƟced on 
such verificaƟon.

 c) The Fixed Assets disposed off during the year, in 
our opinion, do not consƟtute a substanƟal part of 
the Fixed Assets of the Company and such disposal 
has, in our opinion, not affected the going concern 
status of the company.

2) a)  The Inventory of the Company has been physically 
verified by the Management during the year 
except material lying with third parƟes (which 
have substanƟally been confirmed by such third 
parƟes as at the yearend). In our opinion, having 
regard to the nature and locaƟon of stocks, the 
frequency of verificaƟon is reasonable.

 b) In our opinion and according to the explanaƟons 
given to us, the procedures of physical verificaƟon 
of inventories followed by the Management are 
reasonable and adequate in relaƟon to the size of 
the company and the nature of its business.

 c) On the basis of our examinaƟon of records of 
inventory, in our opinion, the Company has 
maintained proper records of inventory and the 
discrepancies noƟced on physical verificaƟon 
between the physical stocks and the book records 
were not material in relaƟon to the operaƟons of 
the Company.

3) a)  As informed to us, the Company has not granted 
any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 
firms or other parƟes listed in the Register 
maintained under SecƟon 301 of the Companies 
Act, 1956.  As the company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured, to parƟes listed in 
the register maintained under SecƟon 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956, paragraphs 3(b), (c) and (d) 
of the Order, are not applicable.

 b) The company had taken unsecured loan from 
six parƟes covered in the register maintained 
under secƟon 301 of the Companies Act; 1956.
The maximum amount involved during the year 
was ` 1,103,468,025.63/- (P.Y. ` 909,480,013.00/) 
and the year-end balance of loans taken from 
such parƟes was ` 1,08,53,55,967.63 /- (P.Y. 
` 358,276,905.00/-)

 c) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon 
& explanaƟon given to us, the rate of interest and 
other terms and condiƟons on which such loans 
have been taken from companies, firm or other 
parƟes listed in the register maintained under 
SecƟon 301 of Companies Act, 1956 are prima facie 
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

 d)  In respect to loans taken, repayment of the 
principal amount is as sƟpulated and payment of     
interest has been regular. 

4) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and 
explanaƟons given to us, there are adequate internal 
control procedures commensurate with the size of the 
company and the nature of its business for purchases of 
inventories, fixed assets and with regard to the sale of 
goods and services. During the course of our audit, no 
major weakness has been noƟced in internal controls in 
respect of these areas.

5) a)  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
given to us, we are of the opinion that the   
transacƟons that need to be entered into the 
register maintained under secƟon 301 of the  
Companies Act, 1956 have been so entered.

 b) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon 
and explanaƟon given to us, the transacƟons made 
in pursuance of contracts/arrangements entered 
in the Register maintained under secƟon 301 of 
the Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value 
of ` 5,00,000/- in respect of each party during 
the year have been made at prices which appear 
reasonable as per informaƟon available with the 
company.

6) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and 
explanaƟons given to us the company has not accepted 
any deposits from the public as defined under Sec. 58A 
and 58AA and any other relevant provisions of the Act 
and Rules made there under.

7) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal 
audit system commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business.
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Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount (`) Period to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum where 
dispute is pending

Tamil Nadu Sales Tax Act, 1959 Penalty 12,295,937.00 2004-05 Assistant Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes, Pollachi

Westbengal Sales Tax Act Penalty 3,083,684.00 2003-04 High Court, Kolkata
Westbengal Sales Tax Act Penalty 1,917,202.00 2004-05 High Court, Kolkata
Tamil Nadu Value Added Tax 
Act 2006

VAT & 
Penalty

1,16,99,100.00 2009-10 Assistant Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes, Avinashi

Tamil Nadu Value Added Tax 
Act 2006

VAT & 
Penalty

5,17,068.00 2010-11 Assistant Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes, Avinashi

Tamil Nadu Value Added Tax 
Act 2006

VAT & 
Penalty

3,26,607.00 2011-12 Assistant Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes, Avinashi

The Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty & 
Penalty

1,00,51,976.00 2011-12 Custom, Excise & Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

West Bengal Value Added Tax, 
2003

VAT 19,06,918.00 2009-10 The Senior Joint Commissioner, 
Sales Tax, Kolkata North Circle

The Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 CST 7,20,915.00 2009-10 The Senior Joint Commissioner, 
Sales Tax, Kolkata North Circle

West Bengal Value Added Tax, 
2003

VAT 1,87,675.00 2010-11 The Senior Joint Commissioner, 
Sales Tax, Kolkata North Circle

The Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 CST 12,17,698.00 2010-11 The Senior Joint Commissioner, 
Sales Tax, Kolkata North Circle

Service Tax Service Tax & 
Penalty

1,36,22,826.00 2007-08 to 
2012-13

Custom, Excise & Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

8) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts 
maintained  by the company in respect of products 
where, pursuant to the rules made by the Central 
Government of India, the maintenance of cost records 
has been prescribed under clause (d) of subsecƟon (1) 
of secƟon 209 of the Act and are of the opinion that 
primafacie, the prescribed accounts and records have 
been made and maintained. We have not, however, 
made a detailed examinaƟon of the  records with a view 
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

9) a)  The Company is generally regular in deposiƟng 
with appropriate authoriƟes undisputed statutory 
dues including provident fund, investor educaƟon 
and protecƟon fund, employees state insurance, 
income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, customs duty, 
excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues 

applicable to it though there has been slight delay 
in deposit of these statutory dues in some cases. 

 b)  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, investor educaƟon 
and protecƟon fund, employees state insurance, 
income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, customs duty, 
excise duty, cess and other statutory dues  were 
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

 c)  According to the records of the Company, there 
are no dues of sales tax, income tax, custom duty, 
wealth tax, excise duty or cess which have not 
been deposited on account of any dispute except 
as follows:

10) The Company does not have accumulated losses as 
at 31st March 2014 and has not incurred cash losses 
during the financial year ended on that date or in the 
immediately preceding the financial year.

11) Based on our audit procedures and as per the 
informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the company 
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial 

insƟtuƟon, bank or debenture holders as at the balance 
sheet date.

12)  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us, the company has not granted any loans and 
advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of 
shares, debentures and other securiƟes.

13) The provisions of any special statute as specified under 

Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report
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paragraph (xii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2003 is not applicable to the company.

14) In our opinion, the company is not dealing in or 
trading in shares, securiƟes, debentures, and other 
investments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) 
of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are 
not applicable to the company. 

15) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to 
us, the Company has not given any guarantees for loans 
taken by others from banks or financial insƟtuƟons. 

16) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us, on an overall basis, the term loans have been 
applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

17) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟon given to 
us and on an overall examinaƟon of the balance sheet 
of the company, in our opinion no funds raised on short-

term basis have been used for long-term investment. 
No long-term funds have been used to finance short-
term assets except permanent working capital.

18) The company has not made any preferenƟal allotment of 
shares to parƟes and companies covered in the Register 
maintained under SecƟon 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956 during the year.

19) As the company has no debenture outstanding at any 
Ɵme during the year, paragraph (xix) of the order is not 
applicable to the company.

20) The Company has not raised any money by public issue 
during the year.

21) On the basis of the informaƟon and explanaƟon given 
to us, no fraud on or by the company were noƟced or 
reported during the year.

Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report

For Sanjay Modi & Co.
FRN: 322295E

Chartered Accountants

CA Prodyat Chaudhuri
Kolkata  Partner
Date: May 29, 2014  Membership No.: 065401
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PARTICULARS Note  As at 
March 31, 2014

 As at 
March 31, 2013

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 2  529.98  529.98 
Reserves and Surplus  3  8,550.00  5,589.55 

 9,079.98  6,119.53 
Non-Current LiabiliƟes
Long-Term Borrowings 4  10,861.97  4,189.82 
Long-Term Provisions 5  80.68  62.04 

 10,942.65  4,251.86 
Current LiabiliƟes
Short-Term Borrowings 6  12,810.42  14,237.45 
Trade Payables 7  8,199.13  12,131.51 
Other Current LiabiliƟes 8  1,981.56  1,197.90 
Short-Term Provisions 9  185.68  135.28 

 23,176.79  27,702.14 
TOTAL  43,199.42  38,073.52 
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets :
- Tangible Assets 10  3,168.02  2,678.31 
- Intangible Assets 10  6.60  21.17 
- Capital Work-in-Progress-Tangible Assets 10  2,044.42  1,758.74 
Non-Current Investments 11  24.81  24.81 
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12  123.24  73.65 
Long-Term Loans and Advances 13  548.03  501.56 
Other Non-Current Assets 14  71.50  66.50 

 5,986.62  5,124.72 
Current Assets
Inventories 15  14,782.64  19,305.55 
Trade Receivables 16  19,130.43  11,818.03 
Cash and Bank Balance 17  1,510.47  445.74 
Short-Term Loans and Advances 18  1,789.26  1,379.48 

 37,212.80  32,948.80 
TOTAL  43,199.42  38,073.52 
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 1 to 46

In terms of our report of even date

For SANJAY MODI & CO.  For and on behalf of the Board    
Chartered Accountants    
Firm Reg no.322295E    

Prodyat Chaudhuri  Ashok Kumar Todi   Navin Kumar Todi  
Partner  Chairman Director  
Membership no.065401    

Place : Kolkata  Ajay Kumar Patodia   Navin Kumar Agarwal  
Date : 29th May, 2014  Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  

Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2014

(` in Lacs)
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PARTICULARS Note   For the year ended  
March 31, 2014

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2013

INCOME
Revenue from OperaƟons (Gross) 19  87,063.37  71,325.74 
Less : Excise Duty –  2,145.14 
Revenue from OperaƟons (Net)  87,063.37  69,180.60 
Other Income 20  50.58  8.47 
TOTAL  87,113.95  69,189.08 
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 21  42,662.79  44,459.33 
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 22  1,192.81  1,676.87 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 
and Stock-in-Trade

23  5,454.42  (8,221.38)

Employee Benefits Expense 24  1,205.40  711.02 
Finance Costs 25  1,742.57  1,066.98 
DepreciaƟon & AmorƟzaƟon Expense 26  572.66  445.47 
Other Expenses 27  29,595.17  26,079.25 
TOTAL  82,425.82  66,217.54 
PROFIT BEFORE TAX  4,688.13  2,971.54 
Tax Expense :
- Current Tax  1,600.00  949.00 
- Deferred Tax  (49.59)  (12.10)
Profit for the year  3,137.72  2,034.64 
Earnings per share (Nominal value  ` 10/- each  (P.Y. ` 10/-) : 28
Basic  62.13  40.28 
Diluted  62.13  40.28 
Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 1 to 46

In terms of our report of even date

For SANJAY MODI & CO.  For and on behalf of the Board    
Chartered Accountants    
Firm Reg no.322295E    

Prodyat Chaudhuri  Ashok Kumar Todi   Navin Kumar Todi  
Partner  Chairman Director  
Membership no.065401    

Place : Kolkata  Ajay Kumar Patodia   Navin Kumar Agarwal  
Date : 29th May, 2014  Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31st, 2014
(` in Lacs)
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31st, 2014

PARTICULARS   For the year ended  
March 31, 2014

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2013

A.  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxes and previous year adjustments  4,688.12  2,971.54 

Adjustment for :

DepreciaƟon & AmorƟsaƟon  572.66  445.47 

Interest income  (6.11)  (7.74)

Dividend income  (0.24)  (0.02)

Loss (gain) on sale of  fixed assets  (4.53)  (0.60)

Interest payment  1,742.57  1,066.98 

Provision for Doubƞul Debts  3.88  66.98 

Provision of diminuƟon in the Value of Investment  0.64  (2.46)

Provision of gratuƟty  21.13  17.26 

OperaƟng profit before working capital changes  7,018.13  4,557.40 

Adjustment for :

Trade and other receivables (increase)/Decrease  (7,316.29)  (3,483.93)

Inventories (increase)  4,522.90  (9,312.94)

Loan advances & other current assets (increase)  (456.27)  1,232.94 

Current liabiliƟes (decrease)  (3,148.72)  4,143.67 

Cash generated from operaƟons  619.77  (2,862.91)

Tax paid (Net)  (1,601.46)  (1,158.35)

Net cash from operaƟng acƟviƟes  (981.69)  (4,021.26)

B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (Including capital work in progress)  (1,350.62)  (2,867.35)

Sale proceeds of fixed assets  23.14  2.85 

Decrease/(Increase) in term deposit  0.02  (11.20)

Decrease/(Increase) in inter corporate Investment –  (258.03)

Interest received  1.08  7.74 

Divident received  0.24  0.02 

Net cash used in invesƟng acƟviƟes  (1,326.14)  (3,125.97)

(` in Lacs)
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31st, 2014

PARTICULARS   For the year ended  
March 31, 2014

  For the year ended  
March 31, 2013

C.   CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

       Proceeds from borrowings (a) Short Term  (1,427.03)  5,537.57 

                                                       (b) Long Term  6,672.15  (220.96)

Interest paid  (1,742.57)  (1,066.98)

Dividend paid  (111.11)  (111.11)

Dividend tax paid  (18.88)  (18.03)

Net cash from used in  financing acƟviƟes  3,372.56  4,120.49 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  1,064.73  (3,026.74)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  445.74  3,472.47 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  1,510.47  445.74 

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

1.    This statement is prepared under indirect method as prescribed by AS-3.

       on cash flow statements

2.    Cash and cash equivalents comprise

        Cash in Hand  244.96  32.33 

        Balance with Bank on current Accounts  1,253.54  400.55 

        Other Bank Balance on Undpaid Deposit Account  11.97  12.86 

 1,510.47  445.74 

3.    Previous periods' figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm with current year's presentaƟon

In terms of our report of even date

For SANJAY MODI & CO.  For and on behalf of the Board    
Chartered Accountants    
Firm Reg no.322295E    

Prodyat Chaudhuri  Ashok Kumar Todi   Navin Kumar Todi  
Partner  Chairman Director  
Membership no.065401    

Place : Kolkata  Ajay Kumar Patodia   Navin Kumar Agarwal  
Date : 29th May, 2014  Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  

(` in Lacs)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2014

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a) Nature of OperaƟon

 Lux Industries Limited (the “Company”) is engaged in 
the business of manufacturing & sale of knitwear’s. The 
Manufacturing units of the company are located in Kolkata 
(West Bengal) and Tirupur, in the state of Tamilnadu.The 
Company is a public Limited company and its share is listed 
on the Kolkata and Ahmedabad stock Exchanges in India.

b) Basis of PreparaƟon of Accounts

 The financial statements have been prepared to comply 
in all material aspects with the noƟfied accounƟng 
standards by Companies AccounƟng Standards Rules, 
2006, the provisions of the Companies Act,2013(to the 
extent noƟfied) , the Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent 
applicable), along with the pronouncement /guidelines of 
the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India and of the 
SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India(SEBI). The financial 
statements have been prepared under the historical cost 
convenƟon on an accrual basis. The accounƟngs policies 
have been consistently applied by the company with those 
used in the previous year except where a newly issued 
accounƟng standard is iniƟally adopted or a revision to 
an exisƟng accounƟng standard requires a change in the 
accounƟng policy hitherto in use.

c)   Use of EsƟmates 

 The preparaƟon of financial statements in conformity 
with Generally Accepted AccounƟng Principles requires 
the management to make judgments, esƟmates and 
assumpƟons that affect the reported amounts of Assets 
and LiabiliƟes and disclosure of ConƟngent LiabiliƟes on 
the date of the Financial Statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporƟng 
year. Examples of such esƟmates include provision for 
doubƞul debts, future obligaƟons under employee 
reƟrement benefit plans, income taxes and useful life of 
intangible assets. Although these esƟmates are based on 
the management’s best knowledge, uncertainty about 
these assumpƟons and esƟmates could result in the 
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets or liabiliƟes in future periods. Changes 
in esƟmates are reflected in the financial statements in 
the period in which changes are made and, if material, 
their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements. 

d) Revenue RecogniƟon

 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 

the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured.

 a) Sale of Goods: Sales are recognized when goods are 
supplied and are net of Sales Return.

 b) Revenue from Services: Revenue from services is 
recognized as the service is performed based on 
agreements/arrangements with the concerned 
parƟess

 c) Interest: Interests on Investments are recognized 
on a Ɵme proporƟon basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 

 d) Dividends: Revenue is recognized when the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established by 
the balance sheet date.

 e) Export Benefits: Export EnƟtlements in the form 
of Duty Drawback are recognized in the Profit and 
Loss account when the right to receive credit as per 
the terms of the scheme is established in respect 
of exports made and when there is no significant 
uncertainty regarding the ulƟmate collecƟon of the 
relevant export proceeds. 

  Exports benefits under DEPB/Focus Licence Scheme 
are recognized in the year of export itself provided 
there are no un certainity as to the amount of 
duty enƟtlement. Such export benefits are booked 
separately as revenue by creaƟng a claim against it 
on the assets side.

e) AccounƟng of Claims

 (a) Claims receivable are accounted for at the Ɵme when 
reasonable certainty of receipt is established. Claims 
payable are accounted for at the Ɵme of acceptance.

 (b) Claim raised by Government AuthoriƟes regarding 
taxes and duƟes, which are disputed by the Company, 
are accounted based on merits of each claim.

f) Expenditure

 Expenses are accounted for on accrual basis and provision 
is made for all known losses and liabiliƟes.

g)  Government Grant

 The company receives sales tax incenƟve under the WBIP 
(A.I. Units) Scheme’1994 and the same is recognized as 
revenue in the period in which these are accrued and shown 
as income under the head “Other OperaƟng revenue”. The 
Company has not received any non-monetary assets at 
concessional rate or free of cost as Government Grant.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2014

 In respect of capital subsidy on special machinery from 
government (under TUF-Scheme), The grant is shown 
as deducƟon from the value of assets, when subsidy is 
received from the government.

h) Fixed Assets

 (a) Tangible Assets: Tangible Assets are stated at 
their original cost less accumulated depreciaƟon 
and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the 
purchase price(net of modvat) and any aƩributable 
cost of bringing the asset to its working condiƟon 
for its intended use. Financing costs relaƟng to the 
acquisiƟon of fixed assets are also included to the 
extent they relate to the period Ɵll such assets are 
ready to be put to use.

 (b) Intangible Assets & amorƟzaƟon: Intangible Assets 
are stated at acquisiƟon cost, net of accumulated 
amorƟsaƟon and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. Intangible assets are amorƟsed on a straight 
line basis over their esƟmated useful lives. The 
amorƟzaƟon period and the amorƟzaƟon method 
are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If 
the expected useful life of the assets is significantly 
different from previous esƟmates, the amorƟzaƟon 
period is changed accordingly. The Intangible 
assets include Computer SoŌware and Web Site 
Development cost .AmorƟzaƟon of Intangible 
Assets is made based on management’s evaluaƟon 
of duraƟon of life cycle of intangible assets. The 
amorƟzaƟon rate used are : 

  Asset %

  Computer SoŌware:  40.00

  Website Development cost: 33.33

 c)  Capital Work-in-progress: Capital work-in-progress 
comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not yet 
ready for their intended use at the reporƟng date.

 (d)  DepreciaƟon: DepreciaƟon on fixed assets is 
provided on WriƩen down Value method (pro-rata on 
addiƟon and disposed off during the period) at the 
rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV 
of the Companies Act, 1956. Individual Assets cosƟng 
below Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of 
acquisiƟon..

i) Investments

 Investments are classified as Current and Non current. 

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to 
be held for not more than a year are classified as current 
investments. All other investments are classified as long-
term investments. Current investments are carried at 
lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual 
investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at 
cost. Provision is made for any diminuƟon in the market 
value of long term investment where such diminuƟon is 
considered permanent in nature.

j) ValuaƟon of Inventories

 Raw materials including packing materials are carried 
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is 
determined on FIFO Basis. Work in progress is carried at 
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Finished goods 
produced or purchased by the company are carried at 
lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of finished 
goods and process stock includes cost of conversion and 
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present locaƟons and condiƟons. The company has valued 
inventory net of modvat benefits. Net realizable value is the 
esƟmated selling price in the ordinary course of business, 
less esƟmated costs of compleƟon and esƟmated costs 
necessary to make the sale.

k) Employee Benefits

 (a) Defined ContribuƟon Schemes such as provident 
fund, pension and employee’s state insurance is 
charged to the Profit & Loss Accounts of the year 
when the contribuƟon to the respecƟve funds are 
due.

 (b) Defined Benefit Plan – the cost of providing benefits 
is determined using the projected unit credit method 
with actuarial valuaƟons being carried out at each 
Balance sheet date. Actuarial gain or losses are 
recognized in full in the statement of profit and loss 
for the period in which they occur. 

 (c) Short Term benefit are recognized in the Profit & Loss 
A/c relaƟng to the year in which the employee has 
rendered services.

 (d) Liability on account of other long term employees 
benefit are accounted for as and when such Liability 
arises as per the relevant legislaƟon in force in India.

l) Taxes on Income

 Tax expense comprises current and deferred Tax. Current 
income tax is measured at the amount expected to be 
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paid to the tax authoriƟes in accordance with the Indian 
Income Tax Act. Deferred taxes is recognized, subject to the 
consideraƟon of prudence, on Ɵming differences, being 
the difference between taxable incomes and accounƟng 
income that originates in one period and are capable of 
reversal in one or more subsequent periods. 

 Deferred tax Assets & LiabiliƟes are measured using the Tax 
Rates & Tax Laws that have been enacted or substanƟvely 
enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets 
are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available.   

 Advance Taxes and Provisions for current taxes are 
presented in the Balance sheet aŌer offseƫng advance 
taxes paid and income tax provisions arising in the same 
tax jurisdicƟon and where the company is able to and 
intends to seƩle the assets and liability on a net basis.

m) Provision, ConƟngent LiabiliƟes And ConƟngent Assets

 Provisions involving substanƟal degree of esƟmaƟon in 
measurement are recognized when there is a present 
obligaƟon as a result of past events and it is probable that 
there will be an ouƞlow of resources. ConƟngent liabiliƟes 
are not recognized but are disclosed by way of notes on 
accounts. ConƟngent Assets are neither recognized nor 
disclosed in the financial statements. During the financial 
year the company has made provision for doubƞul debts 
and doubƞul advances to the extent of 100% of the total 
amount idenƟfied as doubƞul  debts and advances.

n) Borrowing Cost

 Borrowing Cost relaƟng to acquisiƟon or construcƟon of 
fixed assets which take substanƟal period of Ɵme to get 
ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the cost 
of a qualifying asset to the extent they relate to the period 
Ɵll such assets are ready to be put to use. Other Borrowing 
Costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which 
they are incurred. 

o) Foreign Currency TransacƟon

 (a) IniƟal RecogniƟon: Foreign currency transacƟons are 
recorded in the reporƟng currency, by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between 
the reporƟng currency and the foreign currency at 
the date of the transacƟon.

 (b) Conversion: Foreign currency monetary items are 
reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary 
items which are carried in terms of historical cost 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2014

denominated in a foreign currency are reported using 
the exchange rate at the date of the transacƟon.

 (c) Exchange Differences: Exchange differences arising 
on the seƩlement of monetary items or on reporƟng 
company’s monetary items at rates different from 
those at which they were iniƟally recorded during the 
year, or reported in previous financial statements, 
are recognized a income or as expenses in the year in 
which they arise.

 (d) Forward Exchange: Contracts (DerivaƟve 
Instruments) not intended for trading or speculaƟon 
purpose: The Company uses forward exchange 
forward contracts to hedge its risk associated with 
foreign currency fluctuaƟons. The premium or 
discount on the forward exchange contract is not 
recognized separately. Exchange difference on such 
contracts is recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss in the year in which the exchange rates change. 
Any profit or loss arising on cancellaƟon or renewal of 
forward exchange contract is recognized as income or 
as expenses for the year.

p) Segment ReporƟng Policies: 

 IdenƟficaƟon of Segments:

 Primary Segment

 Business Segment: The Company’s operaƟng operaƟon 
comprises of only one primary segment viz. manufacturing 
and sale of knitwear’s.

 Secondary Segment

 Geographical Segment: The analysis of geographical 
segment is based on the geographical locaƟon of the 
customers.

 • Sales within India include sales to customers located 
within India.

 • Sales outside India include sales to customers located 
outside India.

q) Earnings per Share (Basic & Diluted)

 Basic earnings (loss) per share are calculated by dividing 
the net profit or loss for the year aƩributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period 
is adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in 
a rights issue to exisƟng shareholders; share split; and 
reverse share split (consolidaƟon of shares).
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 For the purpose of calculaƟng diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit or loss for the period aƩributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 
of all diluƟve potenƟal equity shares.

r) Impairment of assets

 Impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying 
amount of an assets is in excess of its recoverable amount 
and the same is recognized as an expenses in the statement 
of Profit & Loss and carrying amount of the assets is 
reduced to its recoverable amount.

 Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior year is 

 Note 2  SHARE CAPITAL

a.  Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

PARTICULARS   As at March 31, 2014   As at March 31, 2013

Numbers (` in Lacs) Numbers (` in Lacs)

Authorised
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 2,50,00,000  2,500.00 2,50,00,000  2,500.00 

Issued and Subscribed 
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 55,47,500  554.75 55,47,500  554.75 
Paid up
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up 50,50,600  505.06 50,50,600  505.06 
Add : Forfieted Shares 4,96,900  24.92 4,96,900  24.92 
Total  529.98  529.98 

b. ReconciliaƟon of number of  shares outstanding
Equity Shares at the beginning  of the year 50,50,600  529.98 50,50,600  529.98 
Equity Shares at the closing  of the year 50,50,600  529.98 50,50,600  529.98 

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of ` 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is enƟtled 
to one vote per share held. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board  
of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in  the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng. In the event of liquidaƟon 
of the Company, the holders of equity shares are enƟtled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, aŌer meeƟng all 
liabiliƟes and distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amounts, in proporƟon to their shareholding.

a.  Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the company

NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER   As at March 31, 2014   As at March 31, 2013

Numbers %age Numbers %age

Prabha Devi Todi 10,09,000 19.97 10,03,000 19.86
Pradip Kumar Todi 8,06,500 15.97 8,06,500 15.97
Ashok Kumar Todi 6,56,000 12.99 6,56,000 12.99
Bimla Devi Todi 7,01,000 13.88 6,51,000 12.89
Shobha Devi Todi 5,50,500 10.90 5,00,500 9.91

recovered when there is an indicaƟon that the impairment 
losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have 
decreased.

s) Cash Flow Statement

 Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby 
profit before tax is adjusted for the effects transacƟons 
of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of 
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows 
from operaƟng. Financing and invesƟng acƟviƟes of the 
Company are segregated. Cash and cash equivalents in 
the balance sheet comprise cash at bank, cash/cheques in 
hand and unpaid deposit account.



|Annual Report58

®

 Note 3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

  As at March 31, 2014   As at March 31, 2013
SecuriƟes Premium Account
Balance at the beginning of the year  653.58  653.58 
Balance at the end of the year  653.58  653.58 
General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year  608.28  404.28 
Add: Transferred from surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss  315.00  204.00 
Balance at the end of the year  923.28  608.28 
Total  1,576.86  1,261.86 
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year  4,327.69  2,627.05 
Add : Profit for the year  3,137.72  2,034.64 

 7,465.41  4,661.69 
Less: AppropriaƟons  –    –   
Transfer to General Reserve  315.00  204.00 
Proposed Dividend  151.52  111.11 
Tax on Proposed Dividend  25.75  18.88 
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet                                                    6,973.14  4,327.69 
Total  8,550.00  5,589.55 

31.    Dividend proposed to be distributed to Equity share holders is ` 3.00 (P.Y. ` 2.20) per Equity share 

 Note 4  LONG TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED LOANS
Term loans from banks  8.41  88.70 

 8.41  88.70 
UNSECURED LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES
From Body Corporates  9,679.08  3,317.93 
From Directors  1,174.48  783.18 

 10,853.56  4,101.11 
Total  10,861.97  4,189.82 

(` in Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2014

a)  Repayment terms and naure of securiƟes given for term loan as follows :

Bank                              Mar 31, 2014                       Mar 31, 2013                  Nature of Security  Repayment Terms 

Allahabad 
Bank

27.56 75.09 Exclusive HypothecaƟon charge over 
the machineries / equipment acquired 
out of the facility and charge over enƟre 
stock,book debts and other current assets 
of the Company, both present and future. It 
is addƟonaly secured by personal  gurrantee 
of the directors.

Repayable in twenty equal 
quarterly instalment of ̀  11.75 lacs 
each commenced from June 2010 
quarter (as exisƟng). Interest @ 
BR+2.75% is serviced on monthly 
basis, as and when due. 

Allahabad 
Bank

60.26 93.01 Exclusive HypothecaƟon charge over the 
machineries / equipment valuing ` 2.16 
crore in aggregate acquired out of the facility 
and charge over enƟre stock,book debts and 
other current assets of the Company, both 
present and future. It is addƟonaly secured 
by personal gurrantee of the directors.

Repayable in twenty equal 
quarterly instalment of ` 8.10 lacs 
each commenced from Feb, 2012 
quarter (as exisƟng). Interest @ 
BR+2.5% is serviced on monthly 
basis, as and when due.
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b) The Company has received unsecured loan from directors of the Company to fulfill the requirement of the sƟpulaƟon 
imposed by the Company's Banker for sancƟon of working loan faciliƟes. The loan is not covered in the definiƟon of deposit 
as per sub rule (b) (xi) of rule 2 of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975. The Loan from directors are taken at 
nil rate of interest.

 Note 5  LONG TERM PROVISIONS

  As at March 31, 2014   As at March 31, 2013
Provision for Employee benefits  75.22  57.22 
Provision for dimuniƟon in the value of investment  5.46  4.82 
Total  80.68  62.04 

 Note 6  SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED
Loan from Banks
Cash Credit faciliƟes  12,810.42  14,237.45 
Total  12,810.42  14,237.45 

Cash Credit loan is secured against hypothecaƟon of enƟre stocks, book debts and other current assets, both present and 
future of Company. The Cash Credit loan are repayable on demand. It is addiƟonaly secured by personal guarantee of the 
directors.

 Note 7  TRADE PAYBLES
Due to Micro & Small & Medium Enterprises  0.68  23.64 
Others  8,198.45  12,107.87 
Total  8,199.13  12,131.51 

 Note 8  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturity of long term debt  79.40  79.40 
Unclaimed Dividend  11.97  12.51 
Statutory dues  396.58  368.45 
Advance from customers  162.73  269.72 
Deposits from Dealers, Agents etc.  578.61  414.14 
Other payables  752.27  53.67 
Total  1,981.56  1,197.90 

8.1 There are no amount due for payment to the investors educaƟon and protecƟon fund under SecƟon 205C of the 
Companies Act, 1956 at the year end.

8.2 Other payable includes:
Electric Charges  3.57 11.07
Travelling Expenses  -   12.64
Telephone Expenses  2.88 1.78

 Note 9 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for employee benefit  8.41  5.28 
Proposed Dividend on equity shares  151.52  111.11 
Tax on Proposed Dividend  25.75  18.88 
Total  185.68  135.28 
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 Note 11  NONͳCURRENT INVESTMENTS

Investment in equity instruments

 No. of Shares  No. of Shares 
Investment in equity instruments
Long term & Trade Investments 
Quoted Equity Share of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Valued at Cost)
Pacific Cotspin Ltd 49120  4.40 49120  4.40 
Viranchi Technology Limited 4000  1.69 4000  1.69 
Vardhman TexƟles 4000  10.27 4000  10.27 
Other Investment  16.36  16.36 
Unquoted Equity Share of ` 10/- each fully paid up (Valued at Cost)
Todi Hosiery Limited (Associate) 84000  8.40 84000  8.40 
West Bengal Hosiery Park Infrastructure 500  0.05 500  0.05 

 8.45  8.45 
Total  24.81  24.81 
Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investment  8.45  8.45 
Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investment  16.36  16.36 
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investment  10.90  11.54 
Aggregate provision for dimuniƟon in the value of investment  5.46  4.82 

 Note 12  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

  As at March 31, 2014   As at March 31, 2013

Deferred tax Assets
Tax impact of Ɵming differences leading to deferred tax assets
Provision for doubƞul debts/advances
Provision for Employee benefits  45.36  42.04 
Difference between book value of depreciable assets as per books 
of account and wriƩen down value for tax purpose

 28.42  18.57 

Total deferred tax assets  49.46  13.05 
 123.24  73.65 

Difference between book value of depreciable assets as per books 
of account and wriƩen down value for tax purpose

– –

Net deferred tax assets/(liabiliƟes) 123.24 73.65

 Note 13  LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES 

Unsecured Considered Good
Security Deposits  252.56  201.56 
Capital advances  295.47  300.00 
Total  548.03  501.56 

 Note 14  OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS

Bank Deposits  61.21  60.85 
Non Current PorƟon of Prepaid Expenses  0.84  1.22 
Interest accrued on deposits.  9.45  4.42 
Total  71.50  66.50 

(` in Lacs)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2014
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 Note 15  INVENTORIES (at lower of Cost and net realiasble value)

  As at March 31, 2014   As at March 31, 2013

Raw Materials  2,291.17  1,993.44 
Work-in-progress  6,093.01  7,743.38 
Finished goods (Manufactured)  4,981.96  8,699.80 
Stock-in-trade (Goods purchased for resale)  32.59  118.80 
Packing materials  1,383.91  750.12 
Total  14,782.64  19,305.55 

 Note 16  TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they 
are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good  254.11  261.22 
Unsecured, considered doubƞul  127.20  123.32 
Less: Provision for doubƞul debts  127.20  123.32 

 254.11  261.22 
Outstanding for a period less then six months from the date they 
are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good  18,876.32  11,556.81 
Total  19,130.43  11,818.03 

 Note 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand  244.96  32.33 
Balances with bank
On current account  1,253.54  400.55 
Other bank balances
Unpaid Dividend  11.97  12.87 
Total  1,510.47  445.74 

 Note 18   SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances recoverable in cash or kind or value to be received
Considered good  1,789.26  1,379.48 
Unsecured, considered doubƞul  6.24  6.24 
Less: Provision for doubƞul advances  6.24  6.24 
Total  1,789.26  1,379.48 

14.1 Bank deposits are in the nature of fixed deposit receipts which has been pledged by way of security for the loan advanced 
to the company or bank Guarantee given by which are not encashable within a short period and are renewable at the Ɵme of 
maturity, as such categorised as not current assets.
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 Note 19  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

PARTICULARS   As at March 31, 2014   As at March 31, 2013

Amount Amount Amount Amount

Sale of Products
i) Manufactured Goods  85,643.86  69,174.39 
ii) Stock-in-trade  228.90  1,325.55 
Sale of Services
Job Work – 5.10
Other OperaƟng Revenue
i)      Assist Under WBIP Scheme  128.96  97.69 
ii)     Export IncenƟve  1,021.32  696.82 
iii)    IncenƟve received on yarn purchase  33.38  23.75 
iv)   Others  6.95  1,190.61  2.44  820.70 
Total  87,063.37  71,325.74 

a)  Other operaƟng revenue includes Discount Received and Sales Tax rebate received during the year.

 Note 20  OTHER INCOME

Interest Income
i) From Fixed Deposit  5.99  5.07 
ii) Interst on Advance/Delayed Payments  0.12  6.11  2.67  7.74 
Dividend Income
From Long Term Trade Investment  0.24  0.02 
Other Non OperaƟng Income
Profit on Sale of Vehicle  5.15  0.71 
Insurance Claim Recd  39.08 –
Total  50.58  8.47 

 Note 21  COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Yarn Consumed
Opening Stock  1,993.44  1,345.79 
Add : Purchases during the year  23,350.49  22,640.19 

 25,343.93  23,985.98 
Less  : Closing Stock  2,291.17  23,052.76  1,993.44  21,992.54 
Packing Materials Consumed
Opening Stock  750.12  306.22 
Add: Purchases during the year  8,288.85  8,673.19 

 9,038.97  8,979.41 
Less: Closing Stock  1,383.91  7,655.06  750.12  8,229.29 
ConsumpƟon of Fabrics  11,954.97  14,237.50 

 42,662.79  44,459.33 

 Note 22  PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE (KNITWEAR )

Purchase of Stock in Trade (Knitwear )  1,192.81  1,676.87 
 1,192.81  1,676.87 
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 Note 23  CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORKͳINͳPROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

  As at March 31, 2014   As at March 31, 2013

Amount Amount Amount Amount

Finished Goods
Opening Stock (Without Excise)  8,699.80  4,902.02 
Closing Stock  4,981.96  3,717.84  8,699.80  (3,797.78)
Work-in-progress
Opening Stock  7,743.38  3,396.36 
Closing Stock  6,093.01  1,650.37  7,743.38  (4,347.02)
Stock in trade
Opening Stock  118.80  42.23 
Closing Stock  32.59  86.21  118.80  (76.58)
Total  5,454.42  (8,221.38)

 Note 23  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Salaries & Wages & Bonus  1,071.09  624.65 
Provision for Employment benefit  22.46  1,093.55  17.82  642.47 
ContribuƟon to Provident & Other Funds  53.60  30.44 
Staff Welfare Expenses  58.25  38.11 
Total  1,205.40  711.02 

 Note 25  FINANCE COST

Interest Expense  1,609.19  973.43 
Bank Charges  133.38  93.55 
Total  1,742.57  1,066.98 

 Note 26  DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

DepreciaƟon on Tangible Assets  556.87  430.76 
AmorƟzaƟon on Intangible Assets  15.79  14.71 
Total  572.66  445.47 

(` in Lacs)
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 Note 27  OTHER EXPENSES

  As at March 31, 2014   As at March 31, 2013

Amount Amount Amount Amount

ConsumpƟon of stores & spare parts  75.17  75.10 
Power & Fuel  16.25  18.97 
Rent  309.95  188.53 
Repairs to buildings  90.82  53.91 
Repairs to machinery  9.41  7.75 
Repairs to other  17.85  17.97 
Insurance  21.03  14.27 
Rates & Taxes  117.04  143.22 
Selling Expenses  4,655.74  4,738.02 
Royalty  5.00  5.00 
AdverƟsement & Publicity  5,633.05  4,096.97 
Commission  781.27  581.85 
Freight & Other Handling Charges  1,407.85  1,067.93 
Bad Debts  1.12  -   
Processing expense  14,750.84  14,207.66 
Prior Period Items  4.40  (6.75)
Loss on Sale of Vehicle (net)  0.63  0.11 
Foreign currency translaƟon loss (net)  653.94  (81.68)
Miscellaneous Expenses  1,034.23  881.93 
Payment to auditors (Refer note 32)  5.06  3.93 
Provision for dimuniƟon in the Market 
value of Investment

 0.64  (2.46)

Provision for Doubƞul Debts/Advance  3.88  66.98 
Total  29,595.17  26,079.25 

27.1. Prior Period Items Includes:

Debits relaƟng to earlier year  5.57 5.81
Credits relaƟng to earlier year  1.17 12.56
Total  4.40  (6.75)

 Note 28  EARNING PER SHARE COMPUTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS 20: “EARNING PER SHARE”

Sl.
No.

 ParƟculars   As at 
March 31, 2014

  As at 
March 31, 2013

1. Profit for the year 3,137.71 2,034.64
2. Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding at the end of the 

year for Basic EPS.
50.51 50.51

3. Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding at the end of the 
year for Diluted EPS

50.51 50.51

4. Nominal Value per share (`) 10 10
5. Earning per shares 

Basic 62.13 40.28
Diluted 62.13       40.28

(` in Lacs)
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 Note 29  PARTICULARS OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

ParƟculars 2013-14 2012-13
1. ConƟngent LiabiliƟes not provided for in respect of:

i. Guarantee given:
a. to W.B. Sales Tax Department by the company’s banker for which 

counter guarantees have been given by the company
2.50

2.50

b. to Commissioner of Customs, Kolkata 1.40 1.40
c. to Commissioner of Customs, Kolkata 4.85 4.85
d. to Sales Tax Department, Roorkee 0.15 0.15
e. to Sales Tax Department, Ahmedabad 0.20 0.20
f. to Sales Tax Department, Indore 0.15 0.15
g. to Commissioner of Customs, Kolkata 0.38 0.38
h. to Commissioner of Customs, Kolkata 0.61 0.61
i. to Commissioner of Customs, Kolkata 0.12 0.12
j. to WBSEB, Kolkata 1.41 1.41

ii. Sales Tax Penalty for F.Y. 2004-05 under appeal with Assistant 
Commissioner, Pollachi*    

122.96
122.96

iii. Sales tax penalty for F.Y. 2003-04 under appeal with Kolkata High Court 30.84 30.84
iv. Sales tax penalty for F.Y. 2004-05 under appeal with Kolkata High Court 19.17 19.17
v. Sales tax & penalty for F.Y. 2009-10 under appeal with Assistant 

Commissioner of Commercial Taxes Avinashi
117.00

–

vi. Sales tax & penalty for F.Y. 2010-11 under appeal with Assistant 
Commissioner of Commercial Taxes Avinashi

5.17
–

vii. Sales tax & penalty for F.Y 2011-12 under appeal with Assistant 
Commissioner of Commercial Taxes Avinashi

3.26
–

viii. Excise Duty & penalty for F.Y 2011-12 under appeal with Customs, Excise 
& service Tax Appellate Tribunal

100.51
–

ix. Sales Tax (VAT) for the F.Y 2009-10 under appeal with senior joint 
commissioner, sales tax, Kolkata north circle

19.06
–

x. Central sales tax for the F.Y 2009-10 under appeal with senior joint 
commissioner, sales tax, Kolkata north circle

7.21
–

xi. Sales Tax (VAT) for the F.Y 2010-11 under appeal with senior joint 
commissioner, sales tax, Kolkata north circle

1.87
–

xii. Central sales tax for the F.Y 2010-11 under appeal with senior joint 
commissioner, sales tax,Kolkata north circle

12.18
–

xiii. Service tax & penalty for F.Y 2007-08 to 2011-12 under appeal with 
Customs,Excise & service Tax Appellate Tribunal

136.22
–

*The Company has been advised by competent legal professional that the said demand and Penalty is likely to be reversed, 
accordingly no provision has been made in the accounts.

2. Capital and Other Commitments
a. EsƟmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital 

account and not provided for (Net of Advances)
2,878.54 3,000.00                    

b. The company has a export sales commitment towards use of EPCG 
License for which export sales to be achieved within eight years

87.66 –

(` in Lacs)
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30.  SEGMENT REPORTING:

(a)   The Company has only one business segment viz. manufacturing and sale of knitwear, which is treated as the primary 
segment by the company. 

(b)    The company has two geographical segments viz. Sales within India and Sales outside India. These are treated as 
secondary segments of the company.

(c)  Secondary Segment InformaƟon (Geographical Segments)

ParƟculars 2013–14 2012–13
1 Segment Revenue

– Within India 75,773.22 61,069.44     
– Outside India 11,289.54   8,111.16
Total 87,063.37 69,180.60

2 Segment Assets
– Within India 40,278.62   36,895.76
– Outside India   2,920.80     1,177.76    
Total 43,199.42 38,073.52 

3 Capital Expenditure
– Within India 1,350.61   2,867.35     
– Outside India       –            –   
Total 1,350.61              2,867.35 

31. Related Party Disclosures as required by AccounƟng Standard (AS–18) on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by the 
InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India, are as below:–

a) Key managerial Personnel:

 1. Shri Ashok Kumar Todi, ExecuƟve Chairman (Whole Time Director)

 2. Shri Pradip Kumar Todi, Managing Director

b) Associates controlled by Director/RelaƟves:

 Biswnath Hosiery Mills Ltd.

 Todi Hosiery Ltd.

 Rotex Intertrade Pvt. Ltd.

 Chitragupta Sale & Services Pvt. Ltd.

 Holly Field Traders Pvt. Ltd.

 Ebel Fashions Pvt. Ltd.

 Jaytee Exports

 P. G. InfomeƟc Pvt. Ltd.



|Annual Report68

®

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2014

(` in Lacs)
The company’s related party transacƟons during the year and outstanding balances are as below:

Sl.     Nature of TransacƟon Key Management 
Personnel

 RelaƟves of Key 
Management Personnel 

Associates controlled by 
Director/RelaƟves

 2013–14 2012–13  2013–14 2012–13  2013–14 2012–13

1 Sale of goods       
 Todi Hosiery  Ltd. – – 4.57 –

Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd 231.42 6.66
 Ebell Fashions Pvt. Ltd. – – 1190.02 1818.23
 Total 1426.01 1824.89
2 Purchase of goods
 Todi Hosiery  Ltd. – – – 602.35 628.67

Ebell Fashions Pvt. Ltd. 71.46 254.16
 Jaytee Exports 650.73 936.00

Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd. 197.83 –
Total 1522.37 1818.83

3 Payment for services
 Todi Hosiery Ltd.– Agent Commission – – – 5.38 2.57
 Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd.–Raising Charges – – – 27.29 16.51

Holly Field Traders Pvt. Ltd.–Rent Paid – – – 1.80 1.80
P.G.InfomaƟc Pvt. Ltd.–Rent 21.57 21.57
P.G.InfomaƟc Pvt. Ltd.–Data Processing 60.67 60.67
Total – – – 116.71 103.13

4 RemuneraƟon    
 Ashok Kumar Todi 30.00 18.75 – –
 Pradip Kumar Todi 30.00 18.75 – –
 Total 60.00 37.50 – –
5 Royalty paid   
 Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd. – – – 5.00 5.00

Total 5.00 5.00
6 Received towards services  
 Todi Hosiery Ltd. – – – – 2.05
 Total – – – – 2.05
7 Payment for Security Deposit

P.G.InfomaƟc Pvt. Ltd. – 15.00
Total – 15.00

8 Interest paid
 Chitragupta Sales & Services Pvt. Ltd. – – – – 156.00 36.10
 Rotex Intertrade Pvt. Ltd. – – – – 104.94 63.06

Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd – – – – 91.92 17.90
 Holly Field Traders Pvt. Ltd. – – – – 71.18 18.31
 Total – – – – 424.04 135.39
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Sl.     Nature of TransacƟon Key Management 
Personnel

 RelaƟves of Key 
Management Personnel 

Associates controlled by 
Director/RelaƟves

 2013–14 2012–13  2013–14 2012–13  2013–14 2012–13
9 Loan received
 Chitragupta Sales & Services Pvt. Ltd. – – – – 3945.50 2510.00
 Rotex Intertrade Pvt. Ltd. – – – – 3809.00 6879.00

Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd – – – – 160.00 1616.00
 Holly Field Traders Pvt. Ltd. – – – – 2768.00 1238.00
 Ashok Kumar Todi 216.35 128.75 – – – –
 Pradip Kumar Todi 454.35 133.00 – – – –
 Total 670.70 261.75 – – 10,682.50 12,243.00
10 Loan repayment
 Chitragupta Sales & Services Pvt. Ltd. – – 463.10 4017.11
 Rotex Intertrade Pvt. Ltd. – – 2626.49 7217.05
 Holly Field Traders Pvt. Ltd. – – 1101.37 1415.03

Biswanath Hosiery Mills. Ltd. 36.09 232.79
 Ashok Kumar Todi 150.15 200.52
 Pradip Kumar Todi 129.25 196.50
 Total 279.40 397.02 4227.05 12881.98
11 Advance Against Cloth (Given)

Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd 300.00 –
Total 300.00 –

12 Advance Against Cloth (Repayment)
Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd 295.00 –
Total 295.00 –

13 Advance Against Land (Received)
Chitragupta Sales & Services Pvt. Ltd. 640.00 –
Total 640.00 –

14 Guarantees and collaterals issued 
15 Provision for doubƞul debts amount wriƩen 

off and wriƩen back
16 Outstanding as at 31st March 
 (a) Sundry creditors 
 Jaytee Exports 88.61 324.16
 P.G. InfomeƟc Pvt. Ltd. 12.33 1.85
 Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd. 44.56 11.75

Todi Hosiery Limited 45.19 –
 Total 190.69 337.78
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Sl.     Nature of TransacƟon Key Management 
Personnel

 RelaƟves of Key 
Management Personnel 

Associates controlled by 
Director/RelaƟves

 2013–14 2012–13  2013–14 2012–13  2013–14 2012–13
 (b) Unsecured loans 
 Chitragupta Sales & Services Pvt. Ltd. – – 3784.07 145.66
 Rotex Intertrade Pvt. Ltd. – – 2511.49 1224.04
 Holly Field Traders Pvt. Ltd. – – 1766.57 28.76

Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd 1616.94 1401.11
 Ashok Kumar Todi 456.05 389.85
 Pradip Kumar Todi 718.43 393.32
 Total 1174.48 783.18 9679.07 2799.58
 (c)  Advance Recoverable in cash or value to 

      be received
 Todi Hosiery Ltd. 488.53 188.15

Ebell Fashions Pvt. Ltd. 403.15 78.93
Holly Field Traders Pvt. Ltd. – Rent 0.20 –
Biswanath Hosiery Mills Ltd. 8.66 –

(d) Security Deposit
P.G.InfomaƟc Pvt. Ltd. 25.00 25.00

(e) Advance Against Land (Received) 640.00 –
 Total 1565.54 292.08

 Note 32  AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION INCLUDES 

2013–14 2012–13

Statutory Audit 3.93 3.37
Tax Audit 1.12 0.56
Total 5.05 3.93

33.   Based on the informaƟon/documents available with the company, details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium  
         Enterprises as per MSMED act, 2006 are as below:

Sl.    Details of dues to Micro, small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 2013–14 2012–13

i. The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier as at the end of year
Principal Amount Unpaid 0.64 23.64
Interest Due – –

ii. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of secƟon 16, of the Micro 
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of 
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year.
Payment made beyond the Appointed Date – –
Interest Paid beyond the Appointed Date – –

iii. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium 
Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

– –

iv. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year; and – –

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2014

(` in Lacs)



Annual Report|71

v. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, unƟl such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the 
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deducƟble expenditure under 
secƟon 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

– –

The above informaƟon has been compiled in respect of ParƟes to the extent to which they could be idenƟfied as Micro & Small 
Enterprises under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 on the basis of informaƟon available with the 
Company. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

34.  The Income Tax Department had conducted search and seizure operaƟon on the Company’s various locaƟons from 7th 
November 2013 to 8th November 2013. No order, consequent to such operaƟons, has so far been received by the company 
and thus its impact , if any, on the Company’s financial results, is presently not ascertainable.

35.  GRATUITY BENEFIT PLANS:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a 
gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Company has not funded 
the scheme.

(a)  The following table’s summaries the components of the net benefit expenses recognized in the profit and loss account 
and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for respecƟve plans. 

As at March 31, 2014 As at March 31, 2013

Present Value of ObligaƟon at the beginning of the year 62.50 45.28
Current Service Cost 21.27 13.97
Interest Cost 6.58 4.85
Net Acturial Losses / (Gain) (5.39) (1.00)
Benefit Paid 1.33 0.60
Present Value of ObligaƟon at the end of the year 83.63 62.50

The Provision for Gratuity is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and same is shown in Note No. 5 and 9 of the Notes 
to Accounts.

(b)  Principle assumpƟons used in the determining gratuity obligaƟon for the Company’s are shown below:

As at March 31, 2014 As at March 31, 2013

Discount Rate 8.25% 8.25%
Rate of increase in Salaries 5.00% 5.00%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years)        22.78%       22.09%

Withdrawal rates
Varying between 8% p.a. and 1% p.a. depending 
on duraƟon and age of the employees

(c)  Amount recognized in Current year and previous four years is as follows:

 2013–14 2012–13  2011–12 2010–11  2009–10 
Present value of obligaƟon as at the beginning        62.50 45.28 36.83 21.74 14.91
Current Service cost 21.27 13.97 9.44 9.67 5.82
Interest cost   6.58 4.85 3.28 2.34 1.47
Total Expenses recognized in P/L account 22.46 17.82 9.96 15.95 6.98
Actuarial (gain)/loss during the year (5.39) (1.00) (2.76) 3.93 (0.31)
Actual benefit paid   1.33 0.60 1.51 0.85 0.15
Present value of obligaƟon as at the end of              83.63 62.50 45.28 36.83 21.74
Fair value of plan assets   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Liability recognized in Balance Sheet 83.63 62.50 45.28 36.83 21.74

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2014
(` in Lacs)
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ParƟculars of DerivaƟves Currency Current Year Previous Year Purpose

Sale USD 5,00,000 20,00,000 Hedge of Trade Receivables

ParƟculars of Unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance sheet date.

  As at March 31, 2014   As at March 31, 2013

US $             INR US $             INR

EQUIVALENT EQUIVALENT 

Amount Receivable in  
Foreign currency on account of the following: US $ 43,63,200.76 1,69,603.65
Trade Receivables                     2,620.50 Lacs 92.06 Lacs

 Note 37  PARTICULARS IN RESPECT OF SALES

         Class of goods Value (`)

2013-14 2012-13

Knitwear 85,872.76 70,499.94

 Note 38  DETAILS OF FINISHED STOCK

i)   Opening stock Knitwear 8,699.80 4,902.02
ii)  Closing stock Knitwear 4,981.95 8,699.80

 Note 39  DETAILS OF FINISHED GOODS PURCHASED

Knitwear 1,192.80 1,676.87

 Note 40  PARTICULARS ABOUT WORK IN PROGRESS

Fabrics 6,093.01 7,743.38

 Note 41  DETAILS OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED DURING THE YEAR

Yarn 23,052.76 21,992.53
Fabric 11,954.96 14,237.50
Packing material & Others 7,655.05 8,229.29
Total 42,662.77 44,459.32

 Note 42  VALUE OF IMPORTED AND INDIGENOUS RAW MATERIALS AND SPARES CONSUMED AND PERCENTAGE OF  
 EACH TO TOTAL CONSUMPTION:

         Class of goods Percentage   Value (`)
2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13

a) Raw materials
Imported   0.08   - 32.51 -
Indigenous 99.92 100.00 42,630.27 44,459.32

Total 100% 100% 42,662.78 44,459.32
b) Stores and spares

Imported 8.66% 4.19% 6.51 3.15
Indigenous       91.34% 95.81% 68.66 71.95

Total 100% 100% 75.17 75.10

 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2014
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 Note 43  VALUE OF IMPORTS DURING THE YEAR ON C.I.F. BASIS

         Class of goods 2013-14 2012-13

Raw materials 32.51 NIL
Capital goods 364.72 636.24

 Note 44  EARNING IN FOREIGN CURRENCY :

2013-14 2012-13

      Direct Export of goods at FOB value 11,213.79 8,019.11

 Note 45  EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY :

2013-14 2012-13

(a) Travelling expenses 21.76 28.82
(b ) Agent Commission 186.26 150.96
Total 208.02 179.78

46.   PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES HAVE BEEN RECAST/ RESTATED WHENEVER REQUIRED

In terms of our report of even date

For SANJAY MODI & CO.  For and on behalf of the Board    
Chartered Accountants    
Firm Reg no.322295E    

Prodyat Chaudhuri  Ashok Kumar Todi   Navin Kumar Todi  
Partner  Chairman Director  
Membership no.065401    

Place : Kolkata  Ajay Kumar Patodia   Navin Kumar Agarwal  
Date : 29th May, 2014  Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  
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